PUBLIC NOTICE OF A MEETING FOR STATE OF NEVADA BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGICAL EXAMINERS MEETING MINUTES

July 12, 2024

1. Call To Order/Roll Call to Determine the Presence of a Quorum.

The meeting of the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners was called to order by President Lorraine Benuto, PhD, at 8:01 a.m. on July 12, 2024, online via "Zoom" and physically at the office of the Board of Psychological Examiners, 3080 S. Durango Drive, Suite 102, Las Vegas, Nevada 89117.

Roll Call: Board President, Lorraine Benuto, Ph.D., Secretary/Treasurer Stephanie Woodard, Psy.D., and members, Monique Abarca, LCSW; Stephanie Holland, Psy.D.; Catherine Pearson, Ph.D.; and Whitney Owens, Psy.D., were present at roll call. Soseh Esmaeili, Psy.D., was absent. Despite the one-member absence at roll call, there was a quorum of the Board members.

Also present were Deputy Attorney General (DAG) Harry Ward; Board Investigator Dr. Gary Lenkeit; Executive Director Laura Arnold; Administrative Director Sarah Restori; Legislative Expert Neena Laxalt; members of the public: Vanessa Aponte, John Barona, Dominique Carter, Dr. Yvonne Fritz, Donald Hoier, Dr. Claudia Mejia, Dr. Michelle Paul, and Sabrina Schnur.

2. Public Comment. The Board wants to remind those who participate in public comment that you are limited to three minutes per person, and that public comment is reserved for comment only. It will not be used as a platform for questions and answers. If you have a statement that is longer than three minutes, please submit your statement in writing and the Board will include it in the written materials that are posted. If you have questions for which you would like answers, please email the Board office at nbop@govmail.state.nv.us.

Dr. Michelle Paul shared public comment regarding public workforce development initiatives that are in the works in Nevada including the development of bachelor's level child behavioral health specialists.

There was no further public comment.

3. Minutes. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Approval of the Minutes of the State of Nevada Board of Psychological Examiners' June 7, 2024, Meeting.

There were no comments or changes suggested for the minutes of the June 7, 2024, meeting.

On motion by Whitney Owens, second by Catherine Pearson, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the meeting minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board held on June 7, 2024. Monique Abarca approved the minutes as to form, but not content. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 6-0.

4. Financials

A. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Treasurer's Report for Fiscal Year 2024 (July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024).

The Executive Director presented the Treasurer's Report. As of June 30, 2024, the checking account balance was \$ 208,072.14. Through the end of June, which was the end of FY2024, the Board continued to operate on the approximately \$161,500.00 in net revenue from the first and second biennium quarter deferred income distributions, and the nearly \$52,500.00 from other deferred revenue distributions such as late renewals, new licensures, and registrations that are allocated to the third biennium quarter (January – June 2024).

The savings account balance, which is the Board's reserve account, was \$ 105,090.93. With the end of June being the end of FY2024, and with the revisions to the budget that were made last month to tighten up the budget, the Board ended FY2024 at about 97% of budgeted expenditures and more than 102% of expected revenue.

The Board's bookkeeper, Michelle Fox, verified and validated the information being provided in the Treasurer's report.

On motion by Catherine Pearson, second by Monique Abarca, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the Treasurer's Report for Fiscal Year 2024. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

B. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 (July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025). The Executive Director presented the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2025. She noted that the amount in the Board's checking account as the Board begins this next fiscal year is about \$208,000.

She informed that the Board can expect renewal fees in the amount of approximately \$435,000 from 690 renewals. Using data from the last renewal, about 80% of those who will be renewing their license will do so prior to the December 31, 2024, deadline, and that amount will get cast across all four biennium quarters. For the projected 20% who will renew their license late between January 1, 2025 and February 28, 2025, the deferred income from those renewals gets cast forward into the second, third, and fourth biennium quarters, as will new licensures, registrations, and reinstatements that come in during the first biennium quarter.

She noted that a few items to highlight in the proposed budget are increases in professional and legal fees to account for the increase in auditor's fees and the disciplinary hearing that is expected to take place and some money for part time staff as needed.

On motion by Monique Abarca, second by Stephanie Woodard, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the budget for Fiscal Year 2025. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and *Stephanie Woodard.*) *Motion Carried: 5-0.*

C. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Proposed Engagement Letter and invoice from Campbell Jones Cohen CPAs for the Annual Board Audit.

The Executive Director informed that Campbell Jones Cohen CPAs has reached out to the Board office with an engagement letter and invoice for the deposit. The firm has quoted a total of \$16,000.00 for the annual audit, and requests a \$6,000.00 deposit to secure their services. Their annual audit fee is accounted for in the FY2025 budget.

On motion by Stephanie Woodard, second by Monique Abarca, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the CPA's Engagement letter for annual audit and payment of retainer. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

D. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Renew the Board's Independent Contractor Agreement with its bookkeeper, Michelle Fox.

The Executive Director informed the independent contractor agreement for the Board's bookkeeper, Michelle Fox, needs to be renewed effective July 1, 2024. She informed

the changes include an hourly increase to \$50/hour and increasing the maximum amount to \$2500.

On motion by Monique Abarca, second by Catherine Pearson, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the renewal of Michelle Fox's Independent Contractor Agreement. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique *Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.*) *Motion Carried: 5-0.*

5. Legislative/Regulation Update

The Executive Director informed that the 3 regulations that had previously been pending – R095-23, R002-24, and R084-24 – have now all been approved by the Board. She will be submitting those regulations to the LCB with the required regulation packet now that she has the approved meeting minutes.

She added that NRS Chapter 641 codification is complete and has been published, and the Board's website has been updated accordingly. R051-23 has not yet been codified.

Neena Laxalt informed bill draft requests have started to come out and she will be monitoring these.

6. Board Needs and Operations

A. Report from the Nevada Psychological Association.

Claudia Mejia shared that the NPA was approached by the California Psych Association regarding removing APA accreditation for Psypact.

B. Report From the Board Office on Operations.

The Executive Director presented the Board's office statistic spreadsheet. She shared that in June, the Board licensed 2 new Psychologists and the board received 15 applications. The Board currently has 720 active licensees and 136 active applications for licensure. She went on to share that as for those the Board registers – the psychological assistants, psychological interns, and psychological trainees – there were a total of 66 that were registered and 31 active applications.

C. Board Officer Voting.

Dr. Pearson, Dr. Esmaeili, and Dr. Holland all expressed the desire to serve on the ATEAM committee.

On motion by Monique Abarca, second by Stephanie Woodard, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved Catherine Pearson, Soseh Esmaeili, and Stephanie Holland as the Board's ATEAM committee. (Yea: *Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.*

7. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action on Pending Consumer Complaints:

A. Complaint #19-0626

DAG Ward informed that the Board approved contract for a hearing officer not to exceed \$10,000; DAG Ward and opposing counsel continue to look for a hearing officer. DAG Ward is hoping to have one by the next Board meeting.

B. Complaint #23-0612

A cease-and-desist letter was sent regarding problematic language to be removed. DAG informed he is in the process of making sure documents confirm removal of language.

C. Complaint #23-0801

DAG Ward informed that Dr. Young is continuing to monitor the various websites and social media sites of the complainant.

D. Complaint #23-0918

DAG Ward has prepared a finalized complaint that should be going out before the next Board meeting.

E. Complaint #24-0103 Companion case to #19-0626, DAG Ward informed they are awaiting a hearing officer.

F. Complaint #24-0312(1)

DAG Ward informed the cease-and-desist letter is being forwarded to the CA Board, as well as possibly the Department of Justice. This has also been referred to the MFT Board.

G. Complaint #24-0312(2)

DAG Ward has prepared a draft complaint and they are in the process of having that finalized with the Board's investigator and the executive director.

H. Complaint #24-0313

DAG Ward is requesting an additional 30 days to complete the investigation. The investigators have been unable to contact the complainant to get additional needed information.

On motion by Stephanie Woodard, second by Catherine Pearson, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved an additional 30 days to complete the investigation in Complaint #24-0313. Whitney Owens abstained from the vote. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 4-0.

I. Complaint #24-0501

DAG Ward informed Dr. Young is recommending dismissal of this complaint. DAG Ward added that this report does not become a public record due to dismissal.

On motion by Monique Abarca, second by Catherine Pearson, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved dismissal of Complaint #24-0501. Whitney Owens abstained from the vote. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 4-0.

J. Complaint #24-0604

DAG Ward informed Dr. Young is recommending dismissal of this complaint.

On motion by Monique Abarca, second by Stephanie Woodard, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved dismissal of Complaint #24-0604. Whitney Owens abstained from the vote. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 4-0.

K. Complaint #24-0605

DAG informed that the investigator has requested additional information from the complainant and this information is being reviewed by the investigator.

L. Complaint #24-0607

DAG Ward informed additional information has been requested and received. The Board complaint is in the process of being prepared and forwarded to the investigator as well as the respondent's attorney.

M. Complaint #24-0614

DAG Ward informed this complaint has been forwarded to the respondent via email and certified mail and a response is due by the respondent on 7/17/2024. Counsel for respondent has requested additional time and extension to 7/31/2024.

8. (For Possible Action) Review and Possible Action on Applications for Licensure as a Psychologist or Registration as a Psychological Assistant, Intern or Trainee. The Board May Convene in Closed Session to Receive Information Regarding Applicants, Which May Involve Considering the Character, Alleged Misconduct, Professional Competence or Physical or Mental Health of the Applicant (NRS 241.030). All Deliberation and Action Will Occur in an Open Session.

The following applicants are recommended for approval of licensure contingent upon completion of licensure requirements: Ana Dolatabadi, Stephanie Northington, Alexis Sliva, Katherin McKenzie, Austin Simpson, Michelle Tatum, Beverly Howze, Christine Dozier, and Lorraine Wong.

On motion by Catherine Pearson, second by Whitney Owens, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the following applicants for licensure contingent upon completion of licensure requirements: Ana Dolatabadi, Stephanie Northington, Alexis Sliva, Katherin McKenzie, Austin Simpson, Michelle Tatum, Beverly Howze, Christine Dozier, and Lorraine Wong. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

A. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve John Barona's Request to extend his Application for Licensure and the EPPP-2 waiver.

Dr. Benuto informed that Dr. John Barona is an applicant for licensure. He first applied for licensure in June 2019, and was granted a one-year extension in June 2021 to June 27, 2022. At the time of his June 2019 application, and during the one-year application extension, he was exempted from the EPPP-2.

Dr. Barona submitted another application for licensure on June 26, 2022, and in July 2022, he advised the Board that he did not pass the EPPP. At that point, Dr. Barona had taken the EPPP twice. There does not appear to be any correspondence from Dr. Barona to the Board office after that, until his request that is now before the Board.

Dr. Barona has also taken State Exam 3 times, but has not yet passed, and he has not yet submitted an approved study plan to take it a fourth time. While he did previously submit a study plan for the State exam to Board, it was denied during the Board's April 2020 meeting, and no further study plan has been provided.

Because Dr. Barona has submitted 2 applications over the past 5 years without having completed licensure, the executive director advised Dr. Barona that his request would need to go before the Board to answer his questions about whether he is eligible for a one year extension for his second application and whether he will be required to take the EPPP-2 based on that not being a requirement when he first applied in June 2019. In order to keep his licensure application active until the Board meeting, the executive director granted a limited application extension until Monday, July 15, 2024, so that it did not expire prior to the Board's meeting.

Dr. Owens noted that since Dr. Barona still has opportunities to take and pass his tests, extending his application is warranted.

Dr. Pearson asked about requiring a study plan for the state exam, and the Executive Director did confirm that if the Board granted this extension, that would be a requirement since this would be his fourth time taking the state exam.

Dr. Barona informed that when he was initially a psychology applicant with his first application, the former Board Executive Director, Morgan Gleich, informed him that as long as he does not let his application expire, he will not have to take the EPPP-2, like being "grandfathered" in. Dr. Barona informed he is currently using test prep programs.

Dr. Pearson pointed out legislation that states a study plan would be required if Dr. Barona applies to take the state exam a fourth time. Dr. Benuto confirmed this. Dr. Barona would also be required to pay the fee to extend his application.

On motion by Whitney Owens, second by Monique Abarca, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved extending Dr. John Barona's second application for an additional year. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Stephanie Holland, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 6-0.

Dr. Barona has also requested to be exempt from the EPPP-2 because he initially applied prior to the EPPP-2 requirement in 2019 and was informed by a previous executive director that he was "grandfathered" in even though he reapplied for licensure in 2022.

Dr. Woodard sought clarification that each application is separate and distinct from previous ones that were applied. The Executive Director confirmed that each application is distinct from previous applications.

On motion by Whitney Owens, second by Stephanie Woodard, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners denied Dr. John Barona's request to waive the EPPP-2. (Yea: Monique Abarca, Stephanie Holland, Whitney Owens, *Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.*) (Nay: Lorraine Benuto) Motion Carried: 5-0.

B. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Dr. Vanessa Ma's Request to Extend her Registration as a Psychological Assistant.

Dr. Benuto shared that Dr. Vanessa Ma has requested that her registration as a psychological assistant under the supervision of Dr. Soseh Esmaeili be extended into a fifth year.

Dr. Ma was originally registered in May 2020, and that registration expired in May 2022 after being extended in 2021. Dr. Ma and her supervisor believed that her registration had again been extended in 2022 through August 2023, but that was at a time when the Board office may not have been staffed, and it is not clear whether there was a formal extension. Dr. Ma was granted a registration extension in November 2023 to account for continuity in her services and to be able to take the EPPP-2 for a fourth time, which request was also granted in November 2023. Dr. Ma's current registration expires in November 2024.

On motion by Whitney Owens, second by Catherine Pearson, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved Dr. Vanessa Ma's request to extend her registration as a psychological assistant for an additional year. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

C. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve Dr. Ramy Bassioni's application to retake the EPPP-1 a fourth time.

Dr. Benuto shared that Dr. Rami Bassioni, who is currently registered with the Board as a Psychological Assistant under Dr. Shauna Landis's supervision, has submitted an application to take the EPPP-1 a fourth time. Dr. Bassioni took the EPPP-1 in May 2023, November 2023, and June 2024, but has not received a passing score.

Dr. Bassioni has completed and provided his application to retake the EPPP-1 a fourth time, and has included information as to his study schedule, study program, practice tests, individual coaching, and areas of focus.

On motion by Monique Abarca, second by Catherine Pearson, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved Dr. Rami Bassioni's request to retake the EPPP-1 a fourth time. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

9. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Administrative Director Employment Agreement.

The Executive Director presented the Administrative Director's Employment Agreement. Prior to taking on her position as the Board's Administrative Director, Sarah worked as a clinical executive director for a psychological services practice in which Dr. Owens was a partner. Sarah continues to work in a limited and part-time administrative capacity for Dr. Owens and another psychologist in their new practice. In order to protect the Board, Dr. Owens wanted to ensure that Sarah's prior employment and current limited, part-time role did not overlap or intermingle with her current role with the Board as its Administrative Director.

In an effort to ensure a separation of any duties in her current role with the Board that would overlap or intermingle with Ms. Restori's prior employment or current limited part time role outside of her role with the Board office, the executive director prepared an employment agreement that, among other things, provides for the separation of certain

duties that would otherwise be within the Administrative Director's role, but will be redirected to the executive director to be solely and exclusively handled by her.

On motion by Stephanie Holland, second by Stephanie Woodard, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the Administrative Director Employment Agreement. Whitney Owens abstained from the vote. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Stephanie Holland, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

10. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Nevada Board of Psychological Examiners' Language Access Plan.

The Executive Director shared that on May 2, 2024, she attended a training that the Language Access Coordinator for the Governor's Office for New Americans provided regarding 2021 SB 318's requirement that each agency of the Executive Department of the State Government (which includes Boards and Commissions) develop a language access plan. She informed that she attended the training because she had not been aware of SB 318 and wanted to be sure the Board is complying with its requirements.

She informed that she has been provided a format/example LAP to the Board and that the Board is free to use and customize that template. It is that template that has been customized for the Board and proposed for approval to be provided to the Governor's ONA's website.

On motion by Whitney Owens, second by Monique Abarca, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved the Board's Language Access Plan. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

11. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action to Approve proposed Language to Resurrect a Revised Version of Repealed NAC 641.120 (National Exam regulation).

The Executive Director informed that while reviewing the recent completed codification of NAC Chapter 641 that was forwarded by the Legislative Counsel Bureau, she found a discrepancy in that NAC 641.120, which concerns the national examination regulation and when and how many times it can be taken. That provision had been repealed and then later appeared in a revised version, but without any information about what happened between those two events, and the Legislative Counsel Bureau had determined that the Board's intention was to repeal that provision. The Executive Director presented the proposed revised version of that provision for the purpose of resurrecting it and to be discussed during a workshop with the Board's approval.

On motion by Whitney Owens, second by Monique Abarca, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved moving the proposed language

to resurrect NAC 641.120 to a regulation workshop. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 5-0.

12. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible on the Inclusion of Continuing Professional Development in Continuing Education Requirements.

Dr. Benuto informed that during its June 7, 2024, meeting, the Board approved beginning a process of including Continuing Professional Development in continuing education requirements. The proposal was to shift into a model that would provide more allowance for additional credits obtained by licensees that would include a range of activities and would also reduce the financial burden on the licensees to obtain CE credits.

Dr. Benuto shared her proposed language regarding satisfying continuing education requirements through Continuing Professional Development for the Board's review and for further discussion if the Board approves.

Vanessa Aponte of the Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada shared a presentation on an idea she forwarded to the Board regarding continuing education credits in exchange for pro bono psychological services, which may fit in with the Board's consideration of Continuing Professional Development as satisfying CE requirements.

On motion by Catherine Pearson, second by Monique Abarca, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved moving forward on developing Continuing Professional Development regulation language. (Yea: *Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.*) *Motion Carried: 5-0.*

13. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action on the California Psychological Association's Request that the Board Support its Request to PsyPact/ASPPB to Remove the APA-Accreditation Requirement.

A few weeks ago, the Board office received an email from the Nevada Psychological Association (NPA) forwarding an inquiry from the California Psychological Association about whether the NPA, Nevada's PsyPact Commissioner, and the Board of Psychological Examiners (NBOPE) would support its request to PsyPact/ASPPB to remove the APA-Accreditation requirement. The NPA stated that it was interested in getting NBOPE's feedback on the request.

Dr. Lenkeit informed that CA Psych Association pointed out that PsyPact legislation does not require psychologists graduate from APA accredited doctoral programs in order to receive PsyPact credentialing, however, the E-Passport requires APA accreditation, which is determined by ASPPB mobility committee, not the PsyPact commission, so there is a conflict. The PsyPact commission proposed to the mobility committee to change this to requiring licensees have the CPQ credential if they have not graduated from an APA accredited program. Dr. Lenkeit made this proposal to the mobility committee and will provide updates on that proposal at the next Board meeting.

Dr. Owens shared that California Psychological Association's request to remove APA accreditation from PsyPact would undermine Nevada's own rules and regulations for requiring APA accreditation or equivalent in Nevada, and would undermine Nevada's ability to hold these standards.

No action was needed on this item, as Dr. Mejia will take this information back to the NPA for discussion.

14. (For Possible Action) Discussion and Possible Action Regarding 2023 AB156, Section 13, which adds Requirements for Psychologists who Diagnose a Patient with an Opioid Abuse Disorder.

Dr. Woodard shared that legislation was passed during the last legislative session that directly impacts psychologists. She stated in NRS 641, Section 13, legislation talks about what a psychologist needs to do if they diagnose a patient with an opioid abuse disorder. She stated there is a lot contained in this legislation and wants to make sure the Board and its licensees are made aware since it directly influences their NRS.

On motion by Stephanie Woodard, second by Catherine Pearson, the Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners approved executive director's recommendation that she send an email to the board's active licensees advising them of this legislation and its requirements. (Yea: Lorraine Benuto, Monique Abarca, Stephanie Holland, Whitney Owens, Catherine Pearson, and Stephanie Woodard.) Motion Carried: 6-0.

15. (For Possible Action) Schedule of Future Board Meetings, Hearings, and Workshops. The Board May Discuss and Decide Future Meeting Dates, Hearing Dates, and Workshop Dates.

The next regular meeting of the Nevada Board of Psychological Examiners is currently scheduled for Friday, August 9, 2024, beginning at 8:00 a.m.

16. Requests for Future Board Meeting Agenda Items (No Discussion Among the Members will Take Place on this Item)

Dr. Woodard would like continued discussion related to behavioral workforce development with special emphasis on bachelor's level children's behavioral health specialist.

Dr. Owens would like to invite the program director at the Nevada Community Health Workers Association, Jay Kolbet-Clausell, to the next Board meeting to present on the role of Community Health Workers and discuss how psychologists can utilize and understand the scope of these individuals.

17. Public Comment. The Board wants to remind those who participate in public comment that you are limited to three minutes per person, and that public comment is reserved for comment only. It will not be used as a platform for questions and answers. If you have a statement that is longer than three minutes, please submit your statement in writing and the Board will include it in the written materials that are posted. If you have questions for which you would like answers, please email the Board office at nbog@govmail.state.nv.us.

There was no public comment.

18. (For Possible Action) Adjournment

There being no further business before the Board, President Dr. Benuto adjourned the meeting 10:42 a.m.